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	Chapter 2 : Non-Tariff Measures


	Objective

APEC economies will achieve free and open trade in the Asia-Pacific region by:

a.
progressively reducing NTMs to the maximum extent possible to minimize possible distortion to trade;
b.
in respect to WTO members:

· Elimination of any measures inconsistent with WTO agreements

· Full compliance with WTO agreements

in accordance to WTO commitments; and

c.
ensuring the transparency of APEC economies’ respective non-tariff measures.


	Guidelines

Each APEC economy will:

a. take into account, in the process of progressive reduction of non-tariff measures, intra-APEC trade trends, economic interests, sectors or products related to industries in which this process may have positive impact on trade and on economic growth in the Asia-Pacific region and developments in the new economy;

b. ensure that the progressive reduction of non-tariff measures is not undermined by the application of unjustifiable measures;

c. consider extending, on a voluntary basis, to all APEC economies the benefits of reductions and eliminations of non-tariff measures derived from sub-regional arrangements; 

d. ensure that measures to promote the new economy and strengthening the functioning of markets are consistent with the objectives above; and

e. implement and maintain standards consistent with the APEC Leaders’ Transparency Standards.

     

	Collective Actions
APEC economies will:

a. pursue incorporation of information on non-tariff measures into a future version of the APEC  tariff database and compile a list of measures recognized as non-tariff impediments and a list of products affected by these impediments;

b. identify industries in which the progressive reduction of non-tariff measures may have positive impact on trade and on economic growth in the Asia-Pacific region or for which there is regional industry support for early liberalization;

c. progressively reduce export subsidies with a view to abolishing them; 

d. abolish unjustifiable export prohibitions and restrictions and endeavor to refrain from taking any such new measures;

e. pursue a series of seminars/policy discussions on non-tariff measures (NTMs); and

f. undertake research  to develop best practices to enhance transparency and progressively reduce NTMs

The current CAP relating to non-tariff measures can be found in the Tariffs and Non-Tariff Measures Collective Action Plan.


	Singapore’s Approach to Non-Tariff Measures in 2009 




Case Study of an NTM Reduction or Elimination Initiative

	Singapore’s Approach to Non-Tariff Measures in 2009

	Section
	Improvements Implemented Since Last IAP
	Current Non-Tariff Measures Applied
	Further Improvements Planned

	Quantitative Import Restrictions/

Prohibitions


	No WTO inconsistent measure. Import prohibitions where applicable are:

a. for protection of public health & safety, animal and plant health, endangered species, environmental protection and national security. 

b. in accordance with international agreements such as the UN Security Council Resolutions, the Montreal Protocol on Substance that Deplete the Ozone Layer, the Chemical Weapons Convention and the CITES Convention.


	- Chewing gum (excluding Oral Dental and Medicinal chewing gums)
- Rough diamonds from Cote D'Ivoire and non-Kimberley Process participants
- Specified goods from countries under UN restrictions, e.g. Democratic People’s Republic of Korea

- Arms and related materials from Iran
Contact point:

Singapore Customs

55 Newton Road

#10-01 Revenue House

Singapore 307987

Tel: (65) 63552000

Internet website: http://www.customs.gov.sg
-  Fire-crackers or Fireworks
- Cigarette & table lighters in the shape of a pistol or revolver
Contact point:

Arms & Explosives Branch

Singapore Police Force

391 New Bridge Road

#02-701 Police Cantonment Complex

Singapore 088762

Fax: (65) 62234704

Internet websites: http://www.spf.gov.sg/licence

                           : http://www.tradenet.gov.sg 

- Articles of asbestos

- Controlled Ozone Depleting Substances (ODS) arising from Singapore’s obligations under the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Hazardous Layer.

- Controlled pesticides or hazardous chemical arising from Singapore's obligations under the Stockholm Convention on Persistent Organic Pollutants and the Rotterdam Convention on the Prior Informed Consent (PIC) Procedure for Certain Hazardous Chemicals and Pesticides in International Trade

- Hazardous waste under the Hazardous Waste (Control of Export, Import and Transit) Act.
Contact point:

For Hazardous Substance

National Environment Authority

Pollution Control Department

40 Scotts Road 

Environment Building #12-00

Singapore 228231 

Tel: 6 731-9641

Fax: 6 836-2294 

Internet website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/
For Hazardous Waste and ODS

National Environment Authority

Pollution Control Department

40 Scotts Road 

Environment Building #12-00

Singapore 228231 

Tel: 6 731-9377

Fax: 6 836-2294 

Internet website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/
-  Used motor vehicles more than 3 years old 

Contact point:

Land Transport Authority

1 Hampshire Road

Singapore 219428
Fax: (65) 6 375 7200
Internet website: http://www.lta.gov.sg
-  Controlled telecommunications equipment such as scanning receivers, military communication equipment & automatic call diverters 

Contact Point:

Info-Communications Development Authority of 

Singapore (IDA)

8 Temasek Boulevard #14-00

Suntect Tower 3, Singapore 038988

Fax: (65) 6 211 2222

Internet website: http://www.ida.gov.sg
Email address: info@ida.gov.sg

	WTO consistent import prohibitions where applied are:

a. for protection of public health & safety, animal and plant health, endangered species, environmental protection and national security.

b. in compliance with international agreements such as the UN Security Council Resolutions, the Montreal Protocol on Substance that Deplete the Ozone Layer, the Chemical Weapons Convention and the CITES Convention.



	Quantitative Export Restrictions/

Prohibitions


	No WTO inconsistent measure. Export prohibitions where applicable are:

a. applied as part of Singapore’s obligations under international treaties such as the UN Security Council Resolutions, the Montreal Protocol on Substance that Deplete the Ozone Layer, the Chemical Weapons Convention and the CITES Convention.  

b. for protection of public health, public security or environmental reasons.


	Some of the products prohibited for export include certain ozone-depleting substances, ivory and derivatives of tiger and rhinoceros horn and scheduled chemicals under the CWC. 

Under the Regulation of Imports and Exports Act,  Singapore prohibits exports of certain products, for example arms and related materials, to certain countries, like Rwanda, Sierra Leone, Iraq, Cote d’Ivoire, Sudan and Republic of Congo respectively.
Pursuant to UNSC Resolution 1718 (2006), Singapore had prohibited the export of certain arms and related material, goods related to nuclear, chemical, biological weapons and missile programmes as well as luxury goods to the Democratic Peoples' Republic of Korea.

Pursuant to UNSC Resolution 1737 (2006), Singapore had prohibited the export of goods related to nuclear and ballistic missile programmes to Iran.
- Certain ozone-depleting substances, generally applied as part of Singapore’s obligations under the Montreal Protocol on Substance that Deplete the Ozone Layer.

- Certain pesticides and hazardous chemicals, generally applied as part of Singapore’s obligations under the Stockholm Convention on Persistent Organic Pollutants and the Rotterdam Convention on the - - Prior Informed Consent (PIC) Procedure for Certain Hazardous Chemicals and Pesticides in International Trade.

- Hazardous waste under the Hazardous Waste (Control of Export, Import and Transit) Act.

Contact point:

For Hazardous Substance

National Environment Authority

Pollution Control Department

40 Scotts Road 

Environment Building #12-00

Singapore 228231 

Tel: 6 731-9641

Fax: 6 836-2294 

Internet website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/
For Hazardous Waste and ODS

National Environment Authority

Pollution Control Department

40 Scotts Road 

Environment Building #12-00

Singapore 228231 

Tel: 6 731-9377

Fax: 6 836-2294 

Internet website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/

	N.A.

Export prohibitions where applicable are:

a. generally applied as part of Singapore’s obligations under international treaties such as the UN Security Council Resolutions, the Montreal Protocol on Substance that Deplete the Ozone Layer, the Chemical Weapons Convention and the CITES Convention.  

b. for protection of public health, public security or environmental reasons.

	Import Levies


	None
	None
	None

	Export Levies


	None
	Singapore does not impose any levies on the export of goods.


	None

	Discretionary Import Licensing


	No WTO inconsistent measure. Export prohibitions where applicable are:

a. applied as part of Singapore’s obligations under international treaties such as the UN Security Council Resolutions, the Montreal Protocol on Substance that Deplete the Ozone Layer, the Chemical Weapons Convention and the CITES Convention.  

b. for protection of public health, public security or environmental reasons.


	Food Regulations
- Artificial sweetening agents, food containing artificial sweetening agent(s) and irradiated food
Control of Plants (Plant Importation) Rules

- Specific plants, plant products and other materials (insects, micro-organisms and soil)
Endangered Species (Import and Export) Act
- Endangered species of wild fauna and flora (CITES products)
Contact point:

Agri-Food and Veterinary Authority of Singapore

5 Maxwell Road #18-00

Tower Block, MND Complex

Singapore 069110

Tel: (65) 6 325 7625

Internet website: http://www.ava.gov.sg

Private Lotteries Act

- Fruit or jackpot machines
Arms and Explosives Act

- Arms and explosives

- Swords

- Daggers

- Bayonets

- Spears

- Spearheads

- Nitro-cellulose

Regulation of Imports and Exports Regulations 

- Handcuffs

- Articles of clothing intended as protection against attack, including bullet-proof vests

- Steel helmets

- Toy guns, including pistols and revolvers

- Amusement machines, coin- or disc-operated, including pin-tables, shooting galleries and cinematography machines

Contact point:

Police Licensing Division 
Police Cantonment Complex 
391 New Bridge Road 
Blk D #02-701 
Singapore 088762 
Tel: 6835 0000 Fax: 6538 6647 
Email: SPF_OPS_Licensing@spf.gov.sg
Internet website: www.spf.gov.sg/licence/frameset_HH.html
Environmental Protection and Management Act and Environmental Protection and Management (Hazardous Substances) Regulations
- Hazardous substances

Environmental Protection and Management Act and Environmental Protection and Management (Ozone Depleting Substances) Regulations 2000
- Ozone depleting substances (ODS) and products containing ODS such as the following:

- Fire extinguishers and fire protection systems using halons

- Air-conditioning and refrigeration equipment  using Chlorofluorocarbons (CFCs)

- Vehicles with air-conditioners containing CFCs

Contact point:

Pollution Control Department 
National Environment Agency
40 Scotts Road 
Environment Building #13-00
Singapore 228231
Tel: (65) 1800-2255 632/ 2352611
Email: Contact_NEA@nea.gov.sg
Internet Website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/
Fire Safety Act and Fire Safety (Petroleum and Flammable Materials) Regulations
- Petroleum and flammable materials
Contact point:

HQ Singapore Civil Defence Force
91 Ubi Avenue 4 Singapore 408827
Tel: (65) 1800 280 0000
Internet website: www.scdf.gov.sg
Radiation Protection Act and its Regulations
- Radioactive materials and irradiating apparatus

Contact point:

Centre for Radiation Protection and Nuclear Science 
National Environment Agency
40 Scotts Road 
Environment Building #13-00
Singapore 228231
Tel: (65) 1800-2255 632/ 2352611
Email: Contact_NEA@nea.gov.sg
Internet Website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/
Medicines Act and its Regulations 

- Medicinal products comprising western pharmaceuticals, biologics and Chinese proprietary medicines
Poisons Act and the Misuse of Drugs Regulations

- Poisons/Controlled drugs
Misuse of Drugs Act and its Regulation

- Controlled Drugs (CD)/Psychotropic Substances

Contact point:

Centre for Drug Administration

Health Sciences Authority
11 Outram Road 
Singapore 169078

Tel: (65) 62130838

Internet Website: www.hsa.gov.sg/
Email: hsa_info@hsa.gov.sg
Telecommunications (Dealers) Regulations
- Controlled telecommunication equipment

Contact point:

8 Temasek Boulevard #14-00
Suntec Tower 3
Singapore 038988
Tel: (65) 6211 0888
Internet Website: www.ida.gov.sg
Email: info@ida.gov.sg
Chemical Weapons (Prohibition) Act

- Scheduled chemicals under the Chemical Weapons Convention (CWC)

Contact point:

National Authority(Chemical Weapons Convention)

Strategic Goods Control Branch
Singapore Customs
55 Newton Road, #10-01
Revenue House
Singapore 307987
Tel: (65) 6337 5996
Email: customs_stgc@customs.gov.sg
Internet website: www.customs.gov.sg
Price Control (Rice) Order

- Rice

Contact point:

International Enterprise Singapore

230, Victoria Street,
Level 10, Bugis Junction Office Tower, Singapore 188024
Local: 1800-IESPORE (1800-4377673)
Internet website: www.iesingapore.gov.sg
Regulation of Imports and Exports Regulations

- Poppy seeds (kaskas)

Contact point:
Central Narcotics Bureau
Ministry of Home Affairs

Blk B, Police Cantonment Complex
393 New Bridge Road
Singapore 088763
Tel: 1800-3256666
Internet Website: www.cnb.gov.sg
Misuse of Drugs Act

- Controlled materials or substances used for the manufacturing of controlled drugs

Contact point:

Centre for Drug Administration

Health Sciences Authority
11 Outram Road 
Singapore 169078

Tel: (65) 62130838

Internet Website: www.hsa.gov.sg
Email: hsa_info@hsa.gov.sg
Currency Act
- Merchandise/product containing a photograph, drawing or design resembling or used in/on Singapore currency notes and coins

Contact point:

Monetary Authority of Singapore

10 Shenton Way MAS Building
Singapore 079117
Tel: (65)-6225-5577
Internet website: www.mas.gov.sg
Email: webmaster@mas.gov.sg
Ministry of Finance
100 High Street
#06-03 The Treasury
Singapore 179434
Tel: (65) 6332-7435
Internet website: www.mof.gov.sg
Email: mof_qsm@mof.gov.sg
Regulation of Imports and Exports (Kimberley Process) Regulations
- Rough diamonds
Contact point:

Singapore Customs

55 Newton Road, #10-01
Revenue House
Singapore 307987

Tel: (65) 6355 2000

Internet Website: www.customs.gov.sg/

	Any products subject to discretionary import licensing are applied for protection of environment, animal and plant health, endangered species, public safety, national security and the prevention of deceptive practices.
Singapore will be implementing the ASEAN Cosmetic Directives from 1 Jan 2008. Under the Directive, ASEAN will adopt a harmonised cosmetics regulatory regime. Technical requirements for cosmetics products in ASEAN will be harmonized. Requirement for pre-market approval will be lifted. Importers will only be required to notify the Health Sciences Authority and declare that the technical requirements have been met prior to import. 



	Automatic Import Licensing


	No WTO inconsistent measure. Export prohibitions where applicable are:

a. applied as part of Singapore’s obligations under international treaties such as the UN Security Council Resolutions, the Montreal Protocol on Substance that Deplete the Ozone Layer, the Chemical Weapons Convention and the CITES Convention.  

b. for protection of public health, public security or environmental reasons.


	Control of Plants Act

- Fresh fruits, vegetables, plants and plant products

Animal and Birds Act

- Live animals (including ornamental fish), live birds, products of live animals/birds and veterinary biologics/vaccines
Wholesome Meat and Fish Act

- Meat, food, fish and meat/fish products

Animal and Birds Act and Feeding Stuffs Act

- Animal feed, milk powder – skimmed (coloured for animal feed)
Contact point:

Agri-Food and Veterinary Authority of Singapore

5 Maxwell Road #18-00

Tower Block, MND Complex

Singapore 069110

Tel: (65) 6 325 7625

Internet website: http://www.ava.gov.sg
Medicines Act  
- Veterinary medicaments

Smoking (Control of Advertisements and Sale of Tobacco) Act and its Regulations
- Tobacco products and related advertisements
Contact point:

Health Sciences Authority
11 Outram Road 
Singapore 169078

Tel: (65) 62130838
Internet Website: www.hsa.gov.sg
Email: hsa_info@hsa.gov.sg
Films Act and its Regulations
- Films, video tapes and video games

Undesirable Publications Act 

Publications, gramophone records, paintings and prints
Contact point:

Media Development Authority 
3 Fusionopolis Way 
#16-22 Symbiosis 
Singapore 138633 
Tel: (65) 63773 800
Internet Website: www.mda.gov.sg
Regulation of Imports and Exports Regulations

- Mastering equipment and replication equipment for any of the following:

CD (compact disc);

CD-ROM (compact disc-read only memory);

VCD (video compact disc);

DVD (digital video disc); and

DVD-ROM (digital video disc-read only memory)

Contact point:

Singapore Customs 
55 Newton Road, #10-01
Revenue House
Singapore 307987

Tel: (65) 6355 2000
Internet Website: www.customs.gov.sg
Biological Agents and Toxins Act
- Biological agents that are capable of causing death, disease or other biological malfunction in a human 

- Certain microbial toxins

Contact point:

Biosafety Branch, Ministry of Health
The Biosafety Branch
College of Medicine Building
16 College Road
Singapore 169854
Tel: (65) 6325 9205 / 8459
Internet Website: http://www.biosafety.moh.gov.sg

	N.A. as imports are regulated through the automatic and non-automatic import licensing for reasons of health, safety, environment, national security and obligations from international agreements. 



	Discretionary Export Licensing


	None. Export licenses where applicable are protection of health, safety, and environment or in compliance with Singapore’s international obligations.


	Arms & Explosive Act, Chapter 13

-  Arms, ammunition, explosive precursors, implements of war & atomic energy materials & equipment 

-  Articles of clothing for protection against attack (i.e. Steel helmets, toy guns and handcuffs) 

Contact point:

Arms & Explosives Branch

Singapore Police Force

391 New Bridge Road

#02-701 Police Cantonment Complex

Singapore 088762

Fax: (65) 62234704

Internet websites: http://www.spf.gov.sg/licence
Misuse of Drugs Act (Chapter 185)

Control of manufacture, supply and possession of precursor chemicals as well as provide regulations on the import, export and transhipment of these chemicals
Contact point:

Central Narcotics Bureau

393 New Bridge Road, Singapore 088763

Fax: (65) 6 227 3979

Internet website: http://www.cnb.gov.sg/
Single Convention on Narcotics Drugs and  the Convention on Psychotropic Substances

-  Medicinal products that contain narcotics or psychotropic substances pursuant to  the Single Convention on Narcotics Drugs and  the Convention on Psychotropic Substances 

Contact points:

Centre for Drug Administration

Health Sciences Authority

11 Biopolis Way #11-03

Singapore 138667

Tel: 6866 3400

Internet website: http://www.hsa.gov.sg/publish/hsaportal/en/health_products_regulation/GMP/audit_licensing_importers/authorizations_to.html
Convention on International Trade in Endangered Species of Wild Fauna and Flora (CITES) 

-  Animals, birds, plants and wildlife under CITES 

Contact point:

Agri-Food and Veterinary Authority of Singapore

5 Maxwell Road #18-00

Tower Block, MND Complex

Singapore 069110

Tel: (65) 6 325 7625

Internet website: http://www.ava.gov.sg/AnimalsPetSector/CITESEndangeredSpecies/
Strategic Goods (Control) Act

- Strategic goods under the Strategic Goods (Control) Act- complete list available online at http://www.customs.gov.sg/topNav/leg/act/Strategic+Goods+(Control)+Act.htm
- Singapore-made textiles, garments & textile articles for export to EU or US

Contact point:

Singapore Customs

55 Newton Road

#10-01 Revenue House

Singapore 307987

Tel: (65) 63552000

Internet website: http://www.customs.gov.sg 

Environmental Pollution Control Act and Control of Export, Import and Transit) Act

-  Hazardous substances (including certain ODS) under the Environmental Pollution Control Act

-  Hazardous waste under the Hazardous Waste (Control of Export, Import and Transit) Act.

Contact point:

For Hazardous Substance

National Environment Authority

Pollution Control Department

40 Scotts Road 

Environment Building #12-00

Singapore 228231 

Tel: 6 731-9641

Fax: 6 836-2294 

Internet website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/
For Hazardous Waste

National Environment Authority

Pollution Control Department

40 Scotts Road 

Environment Building #12-00

Singapore 228231 

Tel: 6 731-9377

Fax: 6 836-2294 

Internet website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/

	None. Export licenses where applicable are for protection of health, safety, and environment or in compliance with Singapore’s international obligations.

	Voluntary Export Restraints


	None
	None
	None

	Export Subsidies


	None
	Singapore’s DTD Scheme conforms to the WTO Agreement on Subsidies & Countervailing Measures.


	None

	Minimum Import Prices


	None as Singapore does not impose any minimum import prices.

	Singapore does not impose any minimum import prices.


	None

	Implementation of APEC Leaders’ Transparency Standards on Market Access(

	Singapore is a strong advocate of Free Trade, and has always maintained a transparent regime on information on its FTA/RTAs. Information such as tariff schedules, with current applied tariff rates of both Singapore and her partners are readily available on www.fta.gov.sg

	
	None

	Other Non-Tariff

Measures Maintained


	The non-tariff measures maintained are for protection of public health, public safety, and the environment.

Requirement for importers of brandy and whisky to submit documentary evidence confirming products have been aged in wood for 3 years was lifted in September 2006 


	Technical Standards and Requirements

All petrol and diesel-driven vehicles, before they can be registered for use in Singapore, are required to comply with the exhaust emission standards as specified in the European Directive: 

a)
Petrol-driven vehicles -



EC Directive 96/69/EC (Euro 2) or higher (w.e.f. 1 Jan 2001)

b)
Diesel-driven vehicles -


i) EC Directive 98/69/EC-B (2005) (Euro 4) for light commercial vehicles with maximum laden weight (MLW) of 3500 kg or less and passenger cars ; and

ii) EC Directive 1999/96/EC-B1 (2005) (Euro 4) for heavy duty vehicles with MLW of more than 3500 kg (w.e.f. 1 Oct 2006)

c)
Motorcycles & scooters -  


EC Directive 97/24/EC or higher (w.e.f. 1 Jul 2003)

Contact point:

Land Transport Authority

1 Hampshire Road

Singapore 219428

Fax: (65) 6 375 7200

Internet website: http://www.lta.gov.sg 

-  Importers of bottled natural mineral water, drinking and spring water are required to submit to the Food Control Division of the Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of Singapore an original health certificate issued by the country of origin for every incoming consignment. The document should show the source where the water is obtained and certify that the natural mineral water, drinking or spring water is genuine.

- Importers of soy sauce/oyster sauce, beancurd sheets/sticks, porcelain foodwares, flour/starch, nuts, corn, irradiated food, mineral water, whisky/brandy, preserved fruits and vegetables, agar agar or Eastern Europe foodstuff are required to contact the Food Control Division of the Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of Singapore or fax the import permit for inspection /sampling. 

- Importers of breads and buns, chocolate products, coconut milk and grated coconut, and nasi lemak, infant cereals and infant formulae, land snails, minimally processed fruits and vegetables (including cut sugar cane), traditional cakes, noodles and pastas are required to submit certified-true-copy documents from the food safety authority of the country of origin certifying that the imported food product is produced or manufactured by a licensed or regulated premises.

Contact point:

Food Control Division, 

Food and Veterinary Administration

Agri-Food and Veterinary Authority of Singapore

5 Maxwell Road #18-00

Tower Block, MND Complex

Singapore 069110

Tel: (65) 6 325 2579, 

Fax: (65) 6 324 4563

Internet website: http://www.ava.gov.sg/
-  Household electrical, electronic and gas products designated as Controlled Goods are required to be registered with the SPRING Singapore based on Certificate of Conformity issued by Designated Certification Bodies. Registered Controlled Goods would be required to have a Safety Mark on them or their packaging. Regular and random post-market surveillance are conducted to ensure that only registered Controlled Goods with the Safety Mark are supplied in the local market. These products include: components of LPG gas systems, gas cookers, electric cooking ranges, electric irons, microwave ovens, televisions, video cassette recorders, electric fans, electric kettles, immersion water heaters, refrigerators, rice cookers, room air conditioners, vacuum cleaners, washing machines and hi-fi equipment.

Contact point:

SPRING Singapore 

SPRING Building, 2 Bukit Merah Central

Singapore 159835

Fax: (65) 6 278 9885

Internet website: http://www.spring.gov.sg/safety
Email address: safety@spring.gov.sg
- Under the Weights and Measures Regulations, all new or repaired weighing or measuring instruments for trade use must be verified, sealed and stamped by the Weights and Measures Office of SPRING Singapore or its Authorised Verifiers as prescribed under the Weights and Measures Regulations.

Contact point:

SPRING Singapore 

SPRING Building, 2 Bukit Merah Central

Singapore 159835

Fax: (65) 6 4581441

Internet website: http://www.spring.gov.sg/wmo
Email address: wmo@spring.gov.sg
- Cosmetic products must be safe for human use when applied under normal conditions of use, and cannot contain any poison listed in the Poisons Act, or any banned or restricted substance stipulated for cosmetic products.

- Tobacco products must comply with stipulated nicotine and tar limits.

- Food products, toys or any article cannot be designed or packaged to resemble tobacco products.

Contact Point:

Centre for Drug Administration

Health Sciences Authority

11 Biopolis Way #11-03

Singapore 138667

Tel: 6866 3400

Internet website: http://www.hsa.gov.sg
Labeling and packaging requirements

-  Meat and poultry must have a label containing the description of the product, name and designation number of the slaughterhouse and/or processing establishment, date of slaughtering and/or processing, the batch number, net weight and the country of origin.

-  All prepacked food, unless exempted, are to be labelled with the name of the product, statement of ingredients, net content, country of origin and importers name and address.

- Products with nutritionl claim are required to have a nutrition information panel on the label.

-  Date-marking is required for perishable and selected ‘high-risk’ products.

Contact point:

Food Control Division, 

Food and Veterinary Administration

Agri-Food and Veterinary Authority of Singapore

5 Maxwell Road #18-00

Tower Block, MND Complex

Singapore 069110

Tel: (65) 6 325 2579, 

Fax: (65) 6 324 4563

Internet website: 
http://www.ava.gov.sg

-  Labelling requirements exist for all hazardous substances controlled under the Environmental Pollution Control Act

-  Special labeling requirements exist for paints containing red lead oxide in which the lead content is more than 0.06% by weight or for paints containing other lead components in which the lead content is more than 0.25% by weight.

-  Special labeling requirements exist for paper impregnated with not more than 0.3%, weight in weight, of benzene hexachloride or gamma — BHC.  The label shall come with directions that no food, wrapped or unwrapped, or food utensils are to be placed on the treated paper, and that it is not to be used where food is prepared or served

Contact point:

For Hazardous Substance

National Environment Authority

Pollution Control Department

40 Scotts Road 

Environment Building #12-00

Singapore 228231 

Tel: 6 731-9641

Fax: 6 836-2294 

Internet website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/
For Hazardous Waste and ODS

National Environment Authority

Pollution Control Department

40 Scotts Road 

Environment Building #12-00

Singapore 228231 

Tel: 6 731-9377

Fax: 6 836-2294 

Internet website: http://app.nea.gov.sg/
-  Labeling requirements exist for medicinal products, cosmetic products and  traditional medicines 
-  Tobacco products are required to display stipulated health warning labels.

Contact point:

Centre for Drug Administration

Health Sciences Authority

11 Biopolis Way #11-03

Singapore 138667

Tel: 6866 3400

Internet website: http://www.hsa.gov.sg
- With effect from 1 January 2008, all models of air-conditioners and refrigerators retailed in Singapore must be affixed with energy efficiency labels before they can be sold to the public. The objective is to provide purchasers of such appliances with information on the energy efficiency and performance of these appliances so that they can make informed choices about their purchase.

Contact point:

Resource Conservation Department

National Environment Agency

40 Scotts Road

#11-00 Environment Building

Singapore 228231

(65) 6731-9515

(65) 6734-6956

http://app.nea.gov.sg/
Anti-dumping, countervailing and safeguard measures

- Singapore currently does not impose any anti-dumping or countervailing duty. 

- Singapore does not have any safeguard legislation.

Excise Duties

Excise duties are charged on four categories of products:

- Motor vehicles (excluding goods vehicles):  12% of Open Market Value (OMV) for motor cycles and scooters; 20% of OMV for other passenger motor vehicles

-  Petroleum products: specific rates 

-  Premium petrol (leaded):  $7.10/dal

-  Premium petrol (unleaded):  $4.40/dal

-  Regular petrol (leaded):  $6.30/dal

-  Regular petrol (unleaded):  $3.70/dal

-  Other petrol (leaded):  $6.80/dal

-  Other petrol (unleaded):  $4.10/dal

-  Intoxicating liquors: specific  rates, ranging from $0.80/litre - $70/litre of alcohol

-  Tobacco Products: specific rates, ranging from $181 - $352/kg. For cigarettes, the duty imposed will be 35.2 cents for every gram or part thereof of each stick of cigarette.

Contact point:

Singapore Customs 

55 Newton Road #10-01

Revenue House, Singapore 307987

Tel: (65) 6355 2000

Internet website: http://www.customs.gov.sg
Singapore charges a flat 7% tax on most goods and services irrespective of whether domestically produced or imported, with the exception of the grant, assignment or surrender of any interest in, or right over, any residential properties, and financial services as listed on the Fourth Schedule to the Goods and Services Tax (GST) Act.
	These measures are for protection of the environment, public health and the prevention of traffic congestion. The measures are applied on an MFN basis.




	Improvements in Singapore’s Approach to Non-Tariff Measures since 1996

	Section
	Position at Base Year (1996)
	Cumulative Improvements Implemented to Date

	General Policy

Position


	Singapore does not make use of non-tariff measures. We do not have any voluntary export/ import restraint arrangements, quantitative import restrictions (including global quotas, tariff quotas, emergency safeguard measures etc) and multiple exchange rates or restrictive official foreign exchange allocation. We also do not impose local content requirements or variable levies. Import prohibitions, import and export licensing controls and technical standards, where applied, are for protection of health, safety, environment and security reasons or to discharge Singapore’s obligations under international agreements.


	Singapore regularly reviews NTMs in light of technical, medical and other advances, with a view to streamline unnecessary measures, licensing requirements and certification procedures. Annual reports are also made to APEC on Singapore’s progress in eliminating NTMs for continued transparency in Singapore’s trading regime.

	Quantitative Import Restrictions/

Prohibitions


	Quantitative Import Restrictions

Singapore does not maintain any quantitative restrictions other than on controlled Ozone Depleting Substances (ODS) arising from Singapore’s obligations under the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Hazardous Layer.

Import Prohibitions

Under the Regulation of Import and Exports Act 1995, Singapore applies import prohibition orders for protection of public safety, public health, environment, national security and to discharge its obligations under international agreements and United Nations Security Council resolutions. The import of rhinoceros horns (parts and products), ivory (commercial consignments) and tiger products is prohibited under prohibitions of the CITES. In accordance with United Nations Security Council resolutions, Singapore applies an import prohibition to all goods originating in or consigned to Iraq.


	Import bans and other import restrictions are applied for protection of public health, public security or environment or to meet Singapore’s international obligations such as those under the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Ozone Layer and the United Nations Security Council resolutions.

2001: Prohibition on imports of volcanic rock of a size not exceeding 40mm under the Regulation of Imports and Exports Regulations (RIER) was lifted with effect from 8 May 2001.

2003: Prohibition of imports and exports to Iraq lifted, except for the sale and/or supply of arms, arms-related materials and parts thereof.



	Quantitative Export Restrictions/

Prohibitions


	The Regulation of Imports and Exports Regulations 1995 provides for the prohibition of export of certain goods to certain countries. Export of all products to Iraq, and certain products to Angola, Rwanda and Libya are prohibited. Since Jan 1990, Singapore has stopped all imports and export of ivory and parts of derivatives of tigers and rhinoceros horns listed by the CITES as being in danger of extinction.

	Export bans and other export restrictions are applied for protection of public health, public security or environment or to meet Singapore’s international obligations such as those under the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Ozone Layer and the United Nations Security Council resolutions.

1999: Export prohibition on Libya was suspended with effect from 5 April 1999 until further notification.

2001: Prohibition of the following exports to the Federal Republic of Yugoslavia, including Kosovo and Eritrea and Ethiopia, from Singapore was lifted with effect from 8 October 2001 and 5 September 2001, respectively: 

a. arms and related materials of all types, including 

i) weapons
ii) ammunition
iii) military vehicles and equipment
iv) paramilitary equipment; and 

b. spare parts for the items listed in (a). 

2003:  As of 26 Feb 2003, the prohibition of exports to Angola has been lifted.

As of 4 Nov 2003, the prohibition of exports to Libya has been lifted.



	Import Levies


	Singapore does not impose import levies
	NA

	Export Levies


	Singapore does not impose export levies
	NA

	Discretionary Import Licensing


	-  Artificial sweetening agents, food containing artificial sweetening agents and irradiated food

-  Specific plants, plant products and other materials (insects, micro-organisms and soil) 

-  Fruit or jackpot machines 

-  Radioactive materials and irradiating apparatus 

-  Medicines, poisons and drugs, medicated cosmetics 

-  Controlled telecommunication equipment

-  Rice 

-  Poppy seeds (kaskas) 

-  Arms and explosives 


	1998: Full color copying machines was exempted from discretionary import licensing with effect from December.



	Automatic Import Licensing


	-  Fresh fruits and vegetables, plants and plants produce, meat and meat products, animals/ birds/ eggs/ biologies, medicaments, veterinary, endangered species, import, export or transshipment of fish other than ornamental fish, imports, exports or transshipment of ornamental fish, milk powder – skimmed (coloured for animal feed) 

-  Amusement machines, coins or disc-operated, including pin-tables, shooting galleries and cinematography machines, scrambler or encryption hardware or software capable of re-arranging the signs, signals writing, sounds or intelligence for the purpose of secrecy 

-  Articles of asbestos 

-  Publications, gramophone records, paintings and prints, films, video tapes and video discs

-  Cellulose nitrates

-  Machetes

-  Axes

-  SOS shrill alarms

-  Handcuffs

-  Christmas crackers

-  Pocket lighters, pistol or revolver shaped, gas fueled, non-refillable

-  Table lighters, pistol or revolver shaped

-  Pocket lighters, pistol or revolver shaped other than gas

-  Articles of clothing intended as protection against attack, including bullet-proof vests, helmets, steel

-  Toy guns including pistols and revolvers 


	2000: The Info-Communications Development Authority (IDA) has lifted control over the import of encryption hardware/software with effect from January 2000

	Discretionary Export Licensing


	Controlled drugs (e.g. Morphine, Pethidine and other therapeutic products) under the Single Convention on Narcotics Drugs and psychotropic substances (e.g. diazepam, midozalam, phentermine) under the Convention on Psychotropic Substances.


	

	Voluntary Export Restraints


	Under the WTO Agreement on Textiles and Clothing (ATC), Singapore maintains three bilateral export restraints with Canada, the European Union, Norway and the United States.


	1997: Bilateral export restraints under WTO Agreement on Textiles & Clothing (ATC) with Norway were discontinued with effect from December 1997.

2005: The remaining export restraints with Canada, the European Union and the United States were discontinued with the expiry of the WTO ATC.



	Export Subsidies


	Singapore has notified the Committee on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures (SCM) the following export subsidies under Article 27 of the SCM Agreement:

a. International Trade Incentive

b. Double Tax Deduction

c. Production for Export Incentive

These subsidies are being progressively phased out by in accordance with our obligations.


	1999: With effect from July, the subsidies of International Trade Incentive and Production for Export Incentive were discontinued while Double Tax Deduction was amended to conform to WTO Agreement on Subsidies & Countervailing measures.

	Minimum Import Prices


	Singapore does not impose any minimum import prices.
	N.A. as Singapore does not impose any minimum import prices.



	Implementation of APEC Leaders’ Transparency Standards on 

Market Access (

	
	Singapore is a strong advocate of Free Trade, and has always maintained a transparent regime on information on its FTA/RTAs. Information such as tariff schedules, with current applied tariff rates of both Singapore and her partners are readily available on www.fta.gov.sg


	Other Non-Tariff

Measures Maintained


	Technical Standards and Requirements

-  All imported second hand diesel vehicles are required to comply with the UN/ECE R24.03 emission standard

-  All new petrol-driven vehicles are required to comply with the UN/ECE R83, Consolidated Emission Directive, or the Japanese JIS 78 emission standards 

- Importers of bottled natural mineral water, drinking and spring water are required to submit to the Food Control Division of the Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of Singapore an original health certificate issued by the country of origin for every incoming consignment. The document should show the source where the water is obtained and to certify that the natural mineral water, drinking or spring water is genuine.

-  Importers of beancurd sheets/sticks, porcelain foodwares, flour/starch, nuts, corn, irradiated food, mineral water, whisky/brandy, preserved fruits and vegetables, agar agar or Eastern Europe foodstuff are required to contact the Food Control Division of the Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority of Singapore or fax the import permit for inspection /sampling

-  Importers of brandy and whisky are required to submit documentary evidence furnished by the place of origin confirming that the products have been aged in wood for a period of at least 3 years. 

-  Electronics, electrical and gas consumer products designated as controlled items are required to be registered with the SPRING Singapore based on type test report with supporting documents. These goods shall have a Safety Mark on the product or packaging and regular and random market surveillance are conducted to check that only registered goods with the Safety Mark are supplied in the local market. 

(Affected products are: components of LPG gas systems, gas cookers, electric cooking ranges, electric irons, microwave ovens, televisions, video cassette recorders, electric fans, electric kettles, immersion water heaters, refrigerators, rice cookers, room air conditioners, vacuum cleaners, washing machines and hi-fi equipment.)  

Labeling and packaging requirements

- Meat and poultry must have a label containing the description of the product, name and designation number of the slaughterhouse and/or processing establishment, date of slaughtering and/or processing, the batch number, net weight and the country of origin. 

-  Products with nutritional claim should have a nutritional information panel on the label

-  Date-marking is required for perishable and selected ‘high-risk’ products

-  Labeling requirements exist for paints containing red lead oxide in which the lead content is more than 0.06% by weight or for paints containing other lead components in which the lead content is more than 0.25% by weight.

-  Labeling requirements exist for medicines and poisons under the relevant legislation
-  Tobacco products must display stipulated health warning labels

Excise Duties 

Excise duties are charged on four categories of products:

-  Motor vehicles (excluding goods vehicles): ranging from 12% - 41% for all motor vehicles excluding goods vehicles

-  Petroleum products (motor spirits): $3.70 - $7.10/ dal

-  Alcohol: specific or mixed rates, ranging from $0.80 - $82/litre

-  Tobacco: specific or mixed rates, ranging from $115 - $255/ kgm

Singapore also charges a flat 4% tax (which will be increased to 5% with effect from 1st January 2004) on most goods and services irrespective of whether domestically produced or imported, with the exception of the grant, assignment or surrender of any interest in, or right over, any residential properties, and financial services as listed on the Fourth Schedule to the GST Act.


	Technical standards and labeling requirements are implemented for the purpose of protecting public health, public safety, and the environment.

 2002:  Excise duties for motor vehicles (excluding goods vehicles): 12% of OMV for motor cycles and scooters; 20% of OMV for other passenger motor vehicles, down from a range of 12%-31% previously

2006: Requirement for importers of brandy and whisky to submit documentary evidence confirming products have been aged in wood for 3 years was lifted

The consumption tax has been increased to 7% since and is applied on most goods and services.


Appendix – APEC Leaders’ Transparency Standards on Market Access
Introduction

On 27 October 2002, in Los Cabos, Mexico, APEC Leaders adopted the Statement to Implement APEC Transparency Standards (“Leaders’ Statement”), and directed that these standards be implemented as soon as possible, and in no case later than January 2005.  

In paragraph 8 of the Leaders’ Statement, APEC Leaders instructed that “APEC sub-fora that have not developed specific transparency provisions should do so,” and further instructed that such new transparency provisions should be presented to Leaders upon completion for incorporation into the Leaders’ Statement.  Accordingly, the Market Access Group developed the following set of transparency standards on market access for incorporation into the Leaders’ Statement.  

These principles flow from the General Principles on Transparency agreed to by APEC Leaders at Los Cabos, and provide specific guidance for implementation within a market access context.  

Transparency Standards on Tariff and Non-Tariff Measures:

1.  (a) In accordance with paragraph 1 of the Leaders’ Statement, each Economy will promptly publish or otherwise make available to all interested parties, through readily accessible, widely available media (for example via the Internet), information on its laws, regulations, and progressively, procedures and administrative rulings relating to tariff and non-tariff measures. 

(b)  Such information could include publication of the following measures: (i) tariff schedules, with current applied tariff rates, on the Internet; (ii) details of preferential tariff programs; (iii) tariff rates applicable under Free Trade Agreements and Regional Trade Agreements; and (iv) NTMs maintained by member economies.

2.  In accordance with paragraph 2 of the Leaders’ Statement, when possible each Economy will endeavour to publish in advance any tariff or non-tariff measure that it proposes to adopt, and provide interested persons a reasonable opportunity to comment on such proposed measures.

3.  In accordance with paragraph 3 of the Leaders’ Statement, upon request from an interested person or another Economy, each Economy will endeavour to promptly provide information and respond to questions pertaining to any actual or proposed measures referred to in paragraph 1 above.  

4.  Each Economy will endeavour to ensure that non-tariff measures are administered in a transparent manner, so as to mitigate their effect on the trade and development of other Economies.  

5.  Each Economy that is a WTO Member will, where possible, provide information on non-tariff measures when requested by other WTO Members in the context of the WTO negotiations on market access and will participate actively in these negotiations as they move forward.

6.  Each Economy that is a WTO Member will comply with notification procedures under the WTO Agreement on Import Licensing Procedures.

7.  Each Economy that is a WTO Member will submit its updated tariff data (both bound, and, where possible, current applied) and trade data to the WTO Integrated Data Base on a timely basis.  Economies in the process of acceding to the WTO will, where possible, submit current applied tariff and trade data to the WTO Integrated Data Base.  Each economy will also submit current applied tariff data to the APEC tariff database in a timely manner.

8.  Each Economy will provide to the APEC Secretariat for inclusion on the website of the Market Access Group (MAG) links to individual government websites, including, where possible, links to specific officials responsible for developing, administering, implementing and/or enforcing policies related to tariff and non-tariff measures.  Each Economy further agrees to provide current information on import regulations for the MAG’s Import Regulation website.  Each Economy will also provide as much information as possible on rules and procedures, and details of enquiry points, in its e-Individual Action Plan.
�  These non-tariff measures include but are not restricted to quantitative import/export restrictions/prohibitions, import/export levies, minimum import prices, discretionary import/export licensing, voluntary export restraints and export subsidies.


( Economies should report against the actual language in the APEC Leaders’ Transparency Standards on Market Access, which can be found in the �HYPERLINK  \l "Appendix"��Appendix� at the end of this document.  


( Economies should report against the actual language in the APEC Leaders’ Transparency Standards on Market Access, which can be found in the �HYPERLINK  \l "Appendix"��Appendix� at the end of this document.  Economies should continue to use 1996 as the base year for previously raised IAP transparency issues, but may use 2003 as the base year for reporting on new transparency commitments per the APEC Leaders’ Transparency Standards.








  





